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CONSENT ACREDtl::NT

AND
FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO

40 c.r.R. §§ 22.13 and IUS

CO:"'SENT AGRHMENT

A. PREl.IMI:"lARY STATDIENT

l. This is 8 civil adminislI'lItive C11fon;ement action initiated pursuant to Section 325 of the

Emergency Planning and Commwtity Right-to-Know Act of 1986 ("EPCRA'").42 U.S,C.

§ 11045; Section 109 oflhe Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and

Liability Act ("CERCLA"), as amended. 42 U.S.c. § 9609; and the Consolidated Rules

of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penallies and the

RevocationITermination or Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules"), 40 C.F.II:.

Part 22. Complainant is the United States Environmental Protection Agency. Region IX

("EPA''). Respondent is Rousseau Fanning Company, a corporation organized under the

laws of the state of Arizona.

2, This Consent Agreement and Final Order P'ursuanlto 40 C.F.R. Sections 22.13 and 22, 18

e'CAlFO") simultaneously COIlUtK'1lces and concludes this proceeding, wberein EPA



alleges that Respondent violated Sections 304. 311 and 3 12 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. §§

11004, 11021 and 11022. and Section 103 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603. and their

implementing ~gulations.

B. STATUTORY A.VD REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

3. Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 US.c. § 9603(1). and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6 ~ui~ the

OwnCT or operator of a vessel or an offshore or onshon: facility to immediately notify the

National Response Center ("NRC") as soon as he or she has knowledge ora n:lease ora

hazardous substance that e~cecds the reportable quantity during a 24·hour period.

4. Section 304(a)(l) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11004(1)(1). and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40 ~uire

the OwnCT or operator of a facility that produces, uses, or stores hazardous chemicals to

immediately notify the appropriate state and local emergency planning and rt'Sponse

agencies when (a) an e~trcmely hazardous substance is released from the facility IlOd (b)

the release ~uirt'S a CERCLA § 103(a) notification. l1le owner or operator must

immediately provide the ~uired notice to the community emergency coordinator for the

local emergency planning committee f'LEPC') for any area that is affected by the ~lease

and to the state emergency n:sporu;e commission ("SERC~) for any state that is affected

by the release.

5. Section 3 II ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11021, and 40 C.F.R. § 370.21 provide that the

owner Or open-tor ofa facility is required to submit a Material Safely nata Sheet

("MSDS"), or an alternative MSDS reponing list, to the LEPC, SERC, and fin:

depanment with jurisdiction over the facility, for each hazardous chemical present at the

facility, acrording to the minimum threshold schedule provided in JW3gtaph (b) of40

C.F.R. § 370.20.

6. Section 3 12 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11022, and 40 CFR § 370.25 ~uire the moner Or

operator ofa facility that is ~uircd to prepare or have available an MSDS for a

hazardous chemical under the O<xupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 ("OSHA''). 29

V.S,c. § 651 el seq., to submit an annual emergency and hazardous chemical in"emory
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form containing informalion on hazardous chemicals present al the facility during the

preceding calendar year above the lhreshold levels eslablished in 40 C.F.R. § 370.2O(b).

This invenlory mUSl be submined by March I ofeach year 10 the SERC. LEPC. and fire

depanment having jurisdiction over lhe facility, 40 C.f.R. § 370.25.

C. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

7. Section 100(a)(I)(A) ofCERCLA. 42 U,S.c. § 9609(a)(l)(A), authorizes EPA to assess

civil penalties for any violation of Section 103(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C § 9603(a).

8. The Administrator of EPA delegated the enforcemenl aUlhority of Section 109 of

CERClA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609. 10 the EPA Regional Administrators by issuance of EPA

delegation 14_31, dated May II, 1994. The Regional Administrator of EPA Region IX

further delegaled lhis authority to the Dim:1or of the Superfund Division for EPA Region

IX by issuance of regional delegalion R9 1290.16.

9. Seclions 325(b) and (c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S,c. §§ 11045(b) and (c), authorize the

assessmenl of civil penalties for any violation of Sections 304, 311 and 312 ofEPCRA,

42 U.S.c. §§ 11004, 11021 and 11022,

10. The Administrator of EPA delegated enforcement authorily under EPeRA to lhe EPA

Regional Administrators by isswmce of EPA delegalion 22-3-A, dated May II. 1994.

The Regional Adminimator of EPA Region IX further delegaled the authority to enforce

Sections 302, 303, 304, 311, 312, 322, and 323 of EPCRA, 42 U.s.c. §§ 11002, 11003,

11004, 11021, 11022, and 11043, to the Director oflhe Superfund Division for EPA

Region IX by issuance of regional delegation R9 1290.18.

I!. Respondenl is, and al all times referred to herein was, a "person" as defmed by Section

329(7) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(7), and Section 101(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S,C. §

9601(21).

12. The real property, including improvemenls thereto, located at 9601 West Harrison Street,

Tolleson, Arizona, within Maricopa County (the "Facility"). is a 'facility" as defined by

Section 329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(4).
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13. The Facilily is an "on~hore facility" as defined by Sections 101(18) and 101(9) of

CERClA. 42 U.S,C. §§ 101(18) and 101(9),

14. Respondent produced, used or stored ammonia at the Facility.

15. At all times relevanl to this CAIFO. Respondent has been the OWner Or operator of the

Facility and has been in charge of the Facility.

16. Ammonia is designated as a "hazardous subslanCe" pursuant 10 Sections 101(14) and

102(a) ofCERClA. 42 U.S.c. §§ 9601(14) and 9602(a); 40 C.F.R. § 302.4, Table 302.4;

and Appendix A to § 302.4, Ammonia is also a "hazardous chemical" as defmed by

Sections 329(5) and 311(3) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 11049(5) and 11021(3). The

reportable quantily for ammonia i. 100 pounds.

17. Ammonia is designaled as an "'exlremely hazardous substance" pursuanllo Section

302(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § lIOO2(a). and 40 C.F.R. Pan 355, Appendices A and B.

18. At approximately II :12 pm on November 26. 2006, anywhere from 610 to 1080 pounds

of ammonia leaked or was emitted inlo lhe environment within a 24-hour period from the

Facility.

19. The ammonia released from the Facility entered the ambienl air.

20. The leaking or emitting of ammonia from lhe Facility waS a 'n,lease" as defined by

Section 101(22) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601(22) and Set:tion 329(8) ofEPCRA. 42

U,S.c. § ]]049(8).

21. On December 7, 2006, Respondent IIOtified the NRC, SERC, and LEPC of the November

26,2006, release of ammonia.

22. From 2001-2006. a daily average of8.000 pounds of ammonia was present at the Facility.

23. On December 20, 2006, Respondent submitted Tier II inventory fonus to the Arizona

SERC, Maricopa County LEPC, and Tolleson Fire Department.

24. The Arizona Stale Emer8ency Response Commission is the SERC wilhjurisdiction ova

the Facility.

25. The Maricopa County LEPC i~ lhe LEPC wilhjurisdiclion over the Facility.

,



26. The Tolleson Fire Dcpamnent is the rue department withjurisdiclion over the Facilily.

D. ALLEGr.D VIOLATION$

COUl'"T I

(Failure 10 immediately "atify the NRq

27. Paragraphs I through 26 above arc: incorporated herein by this reference as if they were

set fQrth hetl: in their enlirety.

28. Respondent was required to immedialely report the release ofamfl1Qnia to the NRC

pursuanl to Section 103(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § %03(a).

29. Respondent had &croal or «mSlrUctive knowledge of the ammonia release at or around

II :30 pm on November 26. 2006.

30. At 09:54 am, on December 7, 2006, more than ten days after the incident. Respondenl

nOlified lhe NRC oflhe ammonia release at the Facility.

31. Respondent's failure 10 immedialely notify the NRC oflhe release of ammonia from the

Focility is a violation ofSe<;tion 103(a) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § %03(a). and 40 C.F.R.

§ 302.6.

COUNT II

(Fail"r-c to immediately notify the SERq

32. Paragraphs I through 26 above are illOOrporaled herein by this reference as if they were

set forth here in their entirety.

33. Respondent "''IS required 10 immediately report the release of ammonia 10 the SERC

punuant 10 Section 103(a) ofCERClA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603{a).

34. Respondent had actual or constructive knowledge of the ammonia release at or around

11:30 pm on November 26, 2006.

35. At 09:54 am, on December 7, 2006, more lhan ten days after the incident, Respondent

nolified lhe SERC of the ammonia release at the Facility.

36. Respondent's failure to immedialely notify the SERe of the release of ammonia from the

Facility is a violation of Section 304{a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.SC. § lIOO4(a).
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COUNT III

(Failure to immediately Mt(t:i' the LEPC)

37. Pamgraphs I through 26 above lIJ'C incOfpOrated herein by this reference 3.'i if they wcn:

set fortb here in their entirety.

38. Respondent was required 10 report tbe release of ammonia to the LEPC under Section

103(8) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s.c. § 9603(8).

39. Respondent bad actual or construclive btowledge of the ammonia release al or around

11,30 pm On November 26, 2006.

40. At 09:~ am, on December 7, 2006, more than ten days after the incident, Respondent

notified the LEPC of the ammonia release altbe Facility.

41 . Respondent's failure to immediately notify the LEPC of the release ofammonia from the

Facility is a violation of Se<:-tion 304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § II 004(a).

COUNT IV

(Failure 10 timely submit an MSDS)

42. Paragrapb~ I through 26 above are incOfpOrated berein by this reference as ifthcy we~ set

forth here in their entirety.

43. Respondent W3.'i required to prepare and have a,'ailable an MSDS ulldcr 29 C.F.R. §

191O.1200(g), because Respondent was engaged in a business where chemicals are either

used or distributed, or are produced for use or distribution.

44. As ofDecember 2006, Respondenl used ammonia at the Facility in quantities above the

applicable thresholds established in 40 C.F.R.§ 370.2O(b).

45. As of December 2006, Respondenl failed to submit an MSDS 10 Ihe SERC, LEPC, and

fire departmenl within three months of receipt of ammonia at the Facility in an amount

which exceeded the threshold established in 40 C.F.R. § 370.20(b) .
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46. Respoodenl's failllrC' to SUbmll 1IlI MSDS to !he SERC. LEPC, aDd fll'l\departmatl ",lh.i.n
tItr'tt montlu of=lpI of the ammoma al the Facility in an amowu ....tllch nc:eeded 1M

thresbold <;Slablished al40 C.F.R. f 370.2O(b) IS a ,-iolatiorl ofSecl>Oll 311 of EPCRA. 42

U.S.C.§II02!.

cou:,,\,. \'
(Fllil_to ,.,wlynJI-iI (JlIJfUQ/ P>C"llillll) il1tIi~ denUcal j,,__'yjomJ)

47. ~ I lbrougb 26 abo\'e~ lllOOlJKllated barin by this ref<;n:na as iflMy ,,·Cff

K1 fonh~ in thctrcnllmy.

4g. Bet>to"ft1l 2003 and 2006. Respondmt "'as m[IIIl"l;d 10 prq>are and submilllll annual

emC1'ien<:y and hazardolls chemical lnvenloly foon for ammonia ptInll<lnt 10 Se<;uon 312

ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11022, and 40 C.F.R. § 370.25.

49. Respondent failed 10 submit inventory (omn. containing information on emer~yand

hazardous chemicals pre",,",t at the Facility, to the SERC, LEPC and fire department On or

before March I of2004. 2005. and 2006.

s.o. Respondent's failures to submit inventory foons OOIItaining infonnation on emergency and

hazardous chemicals prncnt ill lhe FllCtbtydllring calendar)Un 2003, 2004, arw:I2005 to

\he SERC. LEPC, aDd fll'l\ department on or before Mlll'I:h I of2004. 2005. and 2006, arc

each a violanon ofScction 312 ofEPCRA, 42 V.S.c. § 11022.

Eo CIVIL PESALTI'

51. SecI>OIl 1000aXIXA) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9609(aXIXA). as adJUSled by \he Ddlc

Collco;tion lmpn.>'"e>:Il."1t Act of 1996, 5« 40 C.F.R. Pan 19, autIlorinf; a I:i"il penalty of

up 10 ntIRlY-TWO rnOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOUARS ($32.500) per day lOr

each day a \iolatiorl ofSectim 103 ofCERQ.A. 42 U.S.C. § 9603. occurs after MaK:h 15.

2004. oS« Table 1of4O C.F.R. § 19.4.69 Fed. Reg. 712L 7126 (Feb. IJ, 2(04).

52. Section 325(b) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11045(b). as adjusted by 1M Ddlc CollC'Ction

lmpro'-cmmt Act of 1996, 1ft 40 C.F.R. Part 19, authorizes a civil pma!ry ofup 10

THIRlY-lWO rnOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOU.ARS (532.500) per day for each
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<by a violation of Section 304 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11004, occurs after Marcb 15,2004.

See Table I of4(l C.F.R. § 19.4,69 Fed. Reg. 7121, 7126 (Feb. 13.2(04).

53. Based on the faets alleged herein. and upon the factors set fonh in the Enforcement

Response Policy for Sections 304, 31 L and 312 ofEPCRA. and Section 103 of CERCLA

(MEPCRAlCERCLA ERP''), including the nalure, extent. and gravity of the violations.

Respondenl"s ability 10 pay. prior history of violations, degree of culpability, and any

economic benefil, and such other mallers as juslice may requill', EPA prop<lses that

Respondent be assessed, and Respondenl agrttS to pay SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAJ.~D

AND }'ORTY-F1VE DOLLARS ($65,045) as lhe eivil penalty for lhe violations alleged

berein. This penalty amount was calculated in accordance wilh the EPCRAlCERCLA

ERP.

F. AD:\lISSI01liS AND WAIVERS

54. For purposes oflhis proceeding, Respondent admits and agrees that EPA has jurisdiction

and authority over lhe subject maller of the action commenced in lhis CAIFO and over

Respondent pursuanl to Section 109 ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9609; Seclion 325 of

EPCRA,42 U.S.c. § 11045; and 4(l C.F.R. §§ 22.4 and 22.37. Further. for the purposes

of this proceeding, Respondent admits to the general allegalions offacts and law set f01'lh

in Sections B and C of this CNFO. Respondent consents to and agrees oot 10 conlesl

EPA's jurisdiction and authority to enter into and issue this CNFO and to enfon;e its

tcnns. Funher, Respondent will not contest EPA'sjurisdiction and authority to compel

compliance with this CNFO in any enforcemenl pt"()C<"CdinllJ!. either adminislrative Or

judicial, or to impose sanctions for violations of this CNFO.

55. Respondent neither admits nor denies any allegations offact or law sel forth in Section D

of this CAIFO. Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to contest lhe

allegations sel forth in this CNFO, waives any rights Respondent may have to a hearing

on any issue relating to the factual allegations or legal conclusions set forth in lhis CNFO,

including without limitation a hearing pursuant to Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §
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11045, and hcTebywnsents to th~ issuance ofihis CAIFO without adjudication. In

addition. Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to appeal the Final

Order anaehed to this C<msenl Agreement and made pan of this CAIFO.

G. SUPPLEMEl\'TAL ENVIROMfENTAL PROJEcr

56. As part Oflb., settlement ofth;. enforcement action, Respondent shall perform a

Supplemental Environmental Project ("'SEP'l Performance of the 13Sks set forth in this

Section G. shall constitute satisfactol)' performance of the SEP,

57. Resp'mdenl shall purchase the emergency response equipment lisled in Attachment A

(MSEP Equipment") to be d<>nated to the Tollewn Fire Deparnnent.

58. Respondent shall spend at least FlFTEEN THOUSAt~DONE HUNDRED FIVE

DOLLARS and SEVENTY CENTS ($15.105.70) on the SEP Equipment.

59. Respondent shall purchase the SEP F..quipment and donate the equipmenllo the Tolleson

Fire ~panrnent within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date of this CAIFO.

60. Within ninety (90) days after the Eff«tive Date ofthis CMO. Respondent shall certifY to

EPA in writing that Respondent has purch.ased the SEP Equipment and delivered the

equipment to the Tolleson Fire Department and that the Tolleson Fire Department has

received the SEP Equipment. At the same time. Respondent shall provide EPA an

aCC{)UIIting showing the amount Respondent expended for purchase. of the SEP

Equipment. and submit to EPA sub~tantiating documentation, including but not limited to

invoices. purchase orden, checks or receipts. The signatory for Respondent shall certifY

under penalty of law that this cenification is based upon true. accurate and complete

information, which the signatory Can verify personally or regarding which the signatory

has inquired oflbe person or persons directly responsible for galbering the information.

61. In the event that Respondent publicizes the purchase and donation of the SEP Equipment.

Respondent shall SllIle in a prominent manner that the projecl is pan ofa settlement ofan

enforcement action by EPA.
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62. The expmduUfU INIIk by Respondenl 111 ilIIplemennng !be SEP are. foc purposes of

fcdI::nJ b"', De1!her lU.-deductlllk DOl" ehaible 10 be added 10 tbe buill of aum or

proprlty for lkprKilitioo purpose'!I. R~lw.an DOl U§e any upmdllt=~

wilh!be SEP 10 obtain fl'lXllbk fnkmlU. treatmrlll

63. Rrspondent certifies thaI Respoodml is not requlCrd by any fednal. IUle or 10000Ilaw or

~gulalion 10 pcTfonn or develop the SEP; IlOr IS Respondent required by agr=nenl. granl

Or as inJunctive reliefin this or any other case (olher than in this CAlFO) to pcTfonn or

develop the SEI'. Respondenl further certifies lhal Respondenl has not received. and will

oot receive. eredi! in any other oclion for lhe SEP. Laslly, Respondenl certifies thai

Respondent will ne,lhcr deduct nor capitalize SEP costs for fedrnJ income tal< purJlO5elI.

H. PARTIES BOU:'\'D

64. This CA/FO shall apply 10 and be binding upoo. Rrspoodrnl and thr agents. SI........Y"'li and

assigns of Rcspondcnl and upoo. all~ aetlni UDder oe foe Respondent. IInnl such

time as tbe ci'il peoaIly rcquiml under SectIOll E has been paid III 8ttOfdaDu "'1m

Sccnon t. and any dcb~ III pcTfOl'TlWlCe andoe Sbpulated penallJes have been =oh,cd.

AI!iUCb time as lhoK mal1el'S~ concludcd..lhis CAIFO shall lemunale and conslitule full

settlement or the violations alleged herem.

65, No change in ownenhip or corporale, pattnenh,p or legal stalus relating 10 the Facility

will in any way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities under this CAIFO.

Unlillerminotion orthis CAIFO, Respondenl shall ai\'e nolice of this CAiFO to any successor in

inlerest prior 10 tranlifer ofo....namip orope"'lI011 of the Facility and s~1 notIfy EPA ",·,thin

SC>'CII (1) days prior 10 such transfer.

66. The undersIgned ICp<C$1lwi,-e ofRcs;pondcDt bcrd>y a:rrifieslbal he or she ill fully

lIU1horiud by Rc:spondmIIO CIIICI" 11110 IIIlS CAlFO, 10 exoctne md 10 kgally bind

RcspoodcllllO Ihill CAIFO.

10



I. CERTIFICATION OF CO.\fPLlA.'IICE

67. Upon signing this CAlFO, Respondent certifies to EPA that the Facility has fully complied

with lhe requirements ofSWion 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 US.c. § 9603(a) and SWions

304,311 and 312 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.c. §§ 11004. 11011, 11012 that fonned the basis for

tbe violations alleged in Section D above. and that the Facility is now in compliance with

the relevant currenl reponing obligations under Sections 311 and 312 ofEPCRA. 42

U.S.c. §§ 11011 and 11012,

68. The signatory for Respondent cenifies under penalty of law that this certification of

compliance is based upon lnle. accurate and complete infonnation, which the signatory

can verify personally Or regarding which lhe signatory has inquired of the person or

persons dim:tly responsible for gathering the information.

J. PAYMEl" OF CIVIL PENALTV

69. Respondent hereby consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay a civil penalty of

SIXTI'-FIVE THOUSM'DAND FORTY-FIVE DOLl,ARS ($65,045) in settlement

of the violalions set fonh in Section D above. This CAIFO constituleS a settlement of all

claims for lhe violalion of Sections 304. 311 and 312 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 11004.

11011 and 11012, and Seclion 103 ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.c. § 9603. alleged in Section D

above.

70. Respondent shall pay the civil penalty within thirty (30) days of the Effective Dale Oflhis

CAIFO. by sending a certified or cashier's check in the amount ofSIXTy-nVE

THOUSAND A!'\D }"ORTV-F1VE DOLLARS ($65,045), payable to "Treasurer, United

States ofAmerica," to:

U.S. Environmenlal Protection Agency
Region IX
P.O. Box 371099M
Pinsburgh. PAl S2S I

The check shall reference the caption and docket numbers of this CAlFO, and shall be

accompanied by a cover letter staling that payment is being made pursuant 10 lhis CAIFO.

The cover letter and civil penally shall be sent by certified mail. relurn receipl requested.
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Copies oflhe tnlnsminals shall be sent 10'

Richard Mednick. (ORC-3)
Associate Regional Counsel
U.s. EPA. Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
SlltI Francisco. CA 94105

md

Regional Hearing Clm (ORC-I)
U.S. EPA. Region IX
7S Hawthorne SII~
SlltI Francisco. CA 94iOS

71. In accordance with the Debl Collection ACI of 1982 and U.S. Treasury dire<:tive (TFRM 6-

8(00), failure to pay the penalty by the due date will result in impo~ition ofiDlere~1 from

lhe effective date ofthi~ CNFO at the cutmll interest rate published by the U.S. Treasury.

as described at 40 C.F.R. §13.11. In addition, a lwelve percent (12%) per annum penalty

will be applied on any principal amount not paid wilhin ninety (90) days of the due date.

72. The penalties specified in this CNFO shall represent civil penalties assessed by EPA and

shall not be deducted by Respondent or any other perwn or entity for federal, state or local

laxation purposes.

73. The expenditures made by Respondent in implemenling the SEP are, for purposes of

federal law. neither tax-deductible expenditures nor eligible to be added to the basis nf

assets or properry for depreciation purposes. Respondent shall nol use any expendilure

associated with the SEP to obtain favorable federal tax treatment.

K. DELAY IN PERFOR.MANCE I STIPULATED PF:NALTIF:S

74. [n addition 10 the interest and per annum penallies described aoovt:, in the evenl thai

Respondent fails to pay the full amount of the penalty within the time specified in

Paragrapb 72, Respondenl agrees to pay EPA a slipulated penalty in the amount ofONE

THOUSAND DOLLARS (SI,OOO) for eacb day that default continues.

75. Except as provided in Paragraph 76 and Paragraphs 78 10 81, in the evenl that Respondent

fails (0 complete any task required by this CNFO by the time required by this CNFO,
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Rnpoodenl shall pi)' ~Ilpl'btedpmalues III Ibo: mnoum ofOl'.'E THOUSAND OOilARS

($1,000) for each day ofdelay.

76. uccp( as provided in~ 79. III !be: e-,'enl ihat Respondml fails 10 purclIasc 1M SEP

Equipmmt for the Tolleson Fitt Deparnnml in lICroTdaoce ..~th Ibo: lmnS of thIS CAlFO,

Respondent shall pay. ~tipulated penalty ofTWil-'TY THOUSAND OOilARS

(520,000),

n If Respondent fails to purchase the SEP Equipment for the Tolleson Fire Department in

accordance with the tcrms of this CAIFO. but Respondent (a) has made good faith and

timely efforts 10 complete lbcsc tasks; and (b) CCTtifies. "ith supponing documentation,

that at leasl TWELVE THOUSAND OOLLARS ($ 12.000) was expended On trying to

complete these taSks. no stipulated penalt), ...il1l1pply.

78. If Respondent Absfaetori.ly purcbasa the SEP Equipment fortlle Tolleson Fire'

Departmenl, Olbnwisc III~ ......ll! tile lCI'mS of this CAirO. b.n Respondenl spml

less tban FtFTEES THOUSAND OOLI..A.RS ($ 15.000) 011 such purcllaKs. Respoodeot

shall pay • sUplilaIcd p=alty of FIVE TIIOUSAND OOUARS ($5,000).

79. The detemunal1011 of,,'bctber Respondent has satisfactorily complied ...ith Ihe lCI'mS of

thts CAIFO and the determination of "'hetbcr Respondent has made • &ood falth. timely

effon 10 complete the task!; required by thIS CA/FO, are within the sole diS\:~ion of the

Division Director, Superfund Division, EPA Region IX. The decision of the Division

Di=IOr, Superfund Division, EPA Region IX is not ~iewable in an)' forum.

80. All stipulatod penahies shall begin to ac<:ruc 00 the dale thaI perfonnance is due or a

\iolatioo occurs. and shall continue to accrue through 1M ftnl.1 day of rorrectioo of the

noncompliance. Nothtng hc=in shall p<e\'ent the. slIIlU!WICOUS IIOCN&! ofsepara!e

pmalties for~ v)oIarions

81. All pmalties owlld to EPA tmder this SKuon shall be: due within thlny{JO) days ofrecelpl

ofa llOlIfu;auoo ofnoncompliaDcc. S..:h nOlificahon shall de$c:ribe:!be: noocompliance

and shall indic.~ !be amouot of pcnaIties dur. Interest at the current n1~ pIIblished by' the
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United States Treasury, as described at 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, shall begin to accruc On the

unpaid balance at the end of the thirty-day period.

82. Payment of stipulated penalties shall be made in accordance with thc procedure SCI forth

for payment of the EPCRA/CERCLA penalty in ~tion J of this CAIFO.

83. All payments shall indicate the name of the Facility. Respondenfs name and address, and

the EPA CERCL\ docket number assigned 10 this action.

84. The payment of stipulated penalties shall not alter in any way Respondent's obligation to

complete the performance requiRd hereunder.

85. The stipulated penalties set forth in this Section do not preclude EPA from pursuing any

other remedies or sanctions "'hich may be available to EPA by reason of Respondent's

failure to comply with any of the requirements of this CAIFO.

86. Notwithstanding any otlter provision of this Section. EPA may. in its =iewable

diSCTdion, waive any portion of stipulated penalties that have accrued pursuant to this

CAIFO.

87. The payment of stipulated penalties specified in this Section shall not be dedllCted by

Respondent or any other person or entity for federal. state or local taxation purposes.

L RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

88. EPA expressly reserves all rightS and defenses that it may havc.

89. EPA hereby reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and

remedies, both legal and equitable. induding the right to requ~ that Respondent perform

tasks in additiOllto thosc required by this CAIFO. EPA further reserves all of its statutOI)'

and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and remedies, both legal and equitablc, which

may pertain 10 Respondent's failure to comply with anyofthe requirements of this

CAlFO, including without limitation, the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of

CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609; and Section 315 ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 11045. This

CAIFO shall not be construed as a covenant nOlto sue, a release, waiver or limilatiOll of

any rights, remedies, powers or authorities, civil or criminal. which EPA has under
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EPCRA or CERCLA or any other statutory. regulatory or common law enforcement

authority of the United Slates, except as otherwise set forth herein.

90, Compliance by Respondent with the terms of this CAIFO shall not relie>'e Respondent of

the obligation to <:(>mply with any applicable locaL state Or federal laws and regulatioll$.

91. The enlry oflhis CNFO and Respond...,t's consent to comply shall not limit or otherwise

preclude EPA from laking additional enforcement actioll$ should EPA determine !hat such

actions are wamul1ed except as they relate to Respondent'S liability for federal civil

penalties for the specific alleged violations and facts as set fonh in Section D of this

CAIFO. Full payment of the penalty proposed herein shall resolve Respondent's liability

for federal civil penahies for the violations and facts alleged herein.

92. This CAIFO is not intended to be nor shall it be comtrued as a permit. This CAIFO d""s

not relieve Respondent of any obligatiOllto obtain and comply ,,·;th any local. State or

federal permits.

M. OTHJ::R CLAIMS

93. Nothing in this CAIFO shall constitute or be construed as a release from any olber claim,

cause of action or demand in law or equity by Or against any person. finn, partnership.

entity or corporation for any liability il may have arising out of or relating in any way to

the generation, storage, treatment. handling, ll'llllsponation. release. Or disposal ofany

hazardous constituems, hazardous substances. hazardous wastes. pollutants. or

contaminants found at, taken to, or tak..., from the Facility.

N. MISCELLANEOUS

94. This CAIFO may be amended or modified only by wrinen agreement executed by both

EPA and Respondent.

95. The headings in this CAIFO are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect

interpretation of this CAIFO.

%. Each party shall bear its own allomeys' fees. costs. and disbursements inClln-ed in this

proceeding.
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97. In. accordance with 40 C.F,R. §§ 22, 18{bX3) and 22.31{b), this CAIFO shall be effective

on the dale thaI the Final Order oontained in this CAlFO, having been approved and issued

by either the Regional Judicial Officer Or Regional Administrator, is filed.
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IT IS SO AGREED.

14> '*et. W 01
Dale

4hp.~-lr-W; II~'S--
Pre~Jdenl

RllUS~u FarmingCo~y

SuperfWld O""lQJI
Uniled SlaJes Environmenlall'To1ectioo Agency.
Region IX



FINAL ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED thai this Consent Agreement and Final Order Pursuant 10 40 c.r,R.

Soxtions 22.13 lll1d 22.18 ("CMO'') in EPA Dod<C1 Nos. EPCRAl9.2~R.~.!and CERC~·
20070 0 (k6ntered, and that Respondent pay a civil penalty in the amount of SIXTY·FIVE

THOUSAND AND FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS (565.045), perfOl1Jl the Supplemental

Enviromnental ProjlXt required by SectiOll F of this CMO, and complete any and alllllSks

required by this CMO.

Date Steven Jawgiel
Relilional Judicial Officer
Vnlled Stales Enviromne
Region IX



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Docket No EPCRA-09-2007~0 3 3
CERCLA-09-2007- 0 0 0 6

I hereby certify thai !he ongln<lllXl9Y of !he foregoing CAFO WIIh the Docket
number referenced above, has been filed WIth the ReglOfl 9 Heaoog C1et1t and that a
copy was sen! by cel'tlfied mail, return rec;:eIpt requested, to:

WiI Rousseau_.
Rous.seau Famung Company
poao.. ,OO
Tolle5on, AZ. 85353

SEP 2 8 2007

Date
Regional HearirlQ Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Fran~sco, CA 94105


